Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, 
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 10-1576 MC



)

SCOTT J. MOOK,

)




)



Respondent. 
)

DECISION 


Scott J. Mook violated state law and federal regulations.  We grant the motion for summary decision filed by the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“MHTC”) and cancel the hearing.
Procedure


MHTC filed a complaint on August 20, 2010.  Mook was personally served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing on February 20, 2011.  Mook did not file an answer to the complaint.  


On April 26, 2011, MHTC filed a motion for summary decision.  Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.446(5) provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if MHTC establishes facts that (a) Mook does not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.


We gave Mook until May 6, 2011, to respond to the motion, but he did not respond.  The following facts as established by the MHTC are undisputed.
Findings of Fact

1. Mook has a sole proprietorship.  His principal place of business is located in Franklin County, Missouri, at 250 Hill Top, Labadie, Missouri.
2. During the relevant times, Mook had no operating authority issued by the Missouri Department of Transportation (“MoDOT”).
Count I

3. On January 22, 2009, Mook operated a commercial motor vehicle, a 2005 Kenworth truck assigned Company Number 01 (“the truck”), with a gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) of 25,900 pounds, in intrastate commerce transporting hazardous materials from Owensville, Missouri, to Fenton, Missouri, when he had not submitted a complete and accurate registration statement to the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration (“PHMSA”); he was not registered in conformity with subpart G of 49 CFR Part 107; and he did not have on file at his principal place of business copies of the required registration statement filed with PHMSA and the required certificate of registration issued by PHMSA.
4. Mook’s cargo during this transportation movement consisted of six drums containing 330 gallons of white paint or paint related material (Identification No. UN 1263, Packing Group I), and nine drums containing 495 gallons of Adhesive (Identification No. UN 1133, Packing Group I), which are classified as “Hazard Class 3— FLAMMABLE hazardous materials” (“the hazardous materials”).

5. Mook transported these hazardous materials in a quantity that required the transport vehicle to display placards in accordance with subpart F of 49 CFR Part 172.
Count II
6. On January 22, 2009, Mook operated the truck in intrastate commerce transporting the hazardous materials from Owensville, Missouri, to Fenton, Missouri, when he had not prepared or adhered to a security plan for hazardous materials in conformity with the requirements of subpart I of 49 CFR Part 172.
Count III
7. On January 22, 2009, Mook operated the truck in intrastate commerce transporting the hazardous materials from Owensville, Missouri, to Fenton, Missouri, when he had not received the hazardous materials and safety training required by subpart H of 49 CFR Part 172 at any time within three years before that date.

Count IV
8. On January 22, 2009, Mook operated the truck in intrastate commerce transporting the hazardous materials from Owensville, Missouri, to Fenton, Missouri, without requiring himself to submit to the prescribed random alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program.
Count V
9. On November 30, 2007, the MoDOT Motor Carrier Services Director issued a carrier out-of-service order against Mook.  In this order, MHTC ordered Mook immediately to cease motor vehicle operations, and prohibited the operation of any motor vehicle owned by or leased to the Mook, subject to certain stated exceptions that are not at issue here.  MHTC’ s order further stated that: “No one under the control of Carrier may operate any motor vehicle that provides transportation of passengers or goods in intrastate or interstate commerce.”

10. MHTC’s out-of-service order against Mook has not been vacated or set aside, but currently remains in force.
11. On January 22, 2009, Mook violated MHTC’s license suspension order when he operated the truck in intrastate commerce transporting the hazardous materials from Owensville, Missouri, to Fenton, Missouri, while MoDOT’s license suspension order was in force and prohibited him from operating any commercial motor vehicle.
Count VI
12. On June 1, 2009, Mook used a 2005 Chevrolet truck assigned Company Number 02, with a licensed gross weight of 12,000 pounds, to transport property (specifically, office supplies) in intrastate commerce from St. Louis, Missouri, to Union, Missouri, for compensation of $125.00.

13. On June 3, 2009, Mook operated the 2005 Chevrolet truck to transport property (specifically, packing board) in intrastate commerce from Union, Missouri to Washington, Missouri, for compensation of $25.00.
14. On these two dates, Mook did not have a MoDOT property carrier registration authorizing either transportation.
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear MHTC’s complaint.
  MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Mook has violated the law.
 

MHTC has the authority to enforce Part 382 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
  Regulation 49 CFR § 382.107 defines “commercial motor vehicle” and “employer”:

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle--

(4) Is of any size and is used in the transportation of materials found to be hazardous for the purposes of the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. 5103(b)) and which require the motor vehicle to be placarded under the Hazardous Materials Regulations (49 CFR part 172, subpart F).
*   *   *

Employer means a person or entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed) that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part.  The term, as used in this part, means the entity responsible for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol program requirements, including individuals employed by the entity who take personnel actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations.  Service agents are not employers for the purposes of this part.

Because the truck transported hazardous materials, it is a commercial motor vehicle.  Because Mook was self employed, Mook was an employer and an employee as defined in the regulation.

Count I

The MHTC argues that Mook violated the following:

49 CFR § 107.601 states:

(a) The registration and fee requirements of this subpart apply to any person who offers for transportation, or transports, in foreign, interstate or intrastate commerce--

*   *   *
(5) A shipment in other than a bulk packaging of 2,268 kg (5,000 pounds) gross weight or more of one class of hazardous materials for which placarding of a vehicle, rail car, or freight container is required for that class, under the provisions of subpart F of part 172 of this chapter; or
(6) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, a quantity of hazardous material that requires placarding, under provisions of subpart F of part 172 of this chapter.

(b) Paragraph (a)(6) of this section does not apply to those activities of a farmer, as defined in § 171.8 of this chapter, that are in direct support of the farmer’s farming operations.

(c) In this subpart, the term “shipment” means the offering or loading of hazardous material at one loading facility using one transport vehicle, or the transport of that transport vehicle.
49 CFR § 107.608 states:

(a) Each person subject to this subpart must submit a complete and accurate registration statement on DOT Form F 5800.2 not later than June 30 for each registration year, or in time to comply with paragraph (b) of this section, whichever is later.  Each registration year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following year.

(b) No person required to file a registration statement may transport a hazardous material or cause a hazardous material to be transported or shipped, unless such person has on file, in accordance with § 107.620, a current Certificate of Registration in accordance with the requirements of this subpart.
49 CFR § 107.620 (Recordkeeping requirements) states:

(a) Each person subject to the requirements of this subpart, or its agent designated under § 107.608(e), must maintain at its principal place of business for a period of three years from the date of issuance of each Certificate of Registration:

(1) A copy of the registration statement filed with PHMSA; and

(2) The Certificate of Registration issued to the registrant by PHMSA.

49 CFR § 171.2 states:

(d) No person may offer or accept a hazardous material for transportation in commerce or transport a hazardous material in commerce unless that person is registered in conformance with subpart G of part 107 of this chapter, if applicable.

Mook transported hazardous materials from Owensville, Missouri, to Fenton, Missouri, when he had not submitted a complete and accurate registration statement to PHMSA; he was not registered in conformity with subpart G of 49 CFR Part 107; and he did not have on file at his principal place of business copies of the required registration statement filed with PHMSA and the required certificate of registration issued by PHMSA.

Mook violated 49 CFR §107.608(a) and (b), §107.620 (a)(l) and (a)(2), and § 171.2(d). 
Count II

The MHTC asserts that Mook violated 49 CFR § 172.800(b):

(b) Applicability.  Each person who offers for transportation in commerce or transports in commerce one or more of the following hazardous materials must develop and adhere to a transportation security plan for hazardous materials that conforms to the requirements of this subpart.  As used in this section, “large bulk quantity” refers to a quantity greater than 3,000 kg (6,614 pounds) for solids or 3,000 liters (792 gallons) for liquids and gases in a single packaging such as a cargo tank motor vehicle, portable tank, tank car, or other bulk container.
*   *   *
(9) A quantity of Division 4.3 material that requires placarding under the provisions of subpart F of this part.[
]
Mook transported hazardous materials from Owensville, Missouri, to Fenton, Missouri, when he had not prepared or adhered to a security plan for hazardous materials.  He violated 49 CFR 
§ 172.800(b)(9).
Count III

The MHTC asserts that Mook violated 49 CFR §177.800(c):

Responsibility for training.  A carrier may not transport a hazardous material by motor vehicle unless each of its hazmat employees involved in that transportation is trained as required by this part and subpart H of part 172 of this subchapter.

Among other requirements within subpart H of 49 CFR Part 172, the provisions in

49 CFR §172.704(c)(2) provide:

(2) Recurrent training.  A hazmat employee must receive the training required by this subpart at least once every three years.
As defined in 49 CFR § 171.8, a hazmat employee is:

(1) A person who employs or uses at least one hazmat employee on a full-time, part time, or temporary basis; and who:
(i) Transports hazardous materials in commerce;
(ii) Causes hazardous materials to be transported in commerce; or
(iii) Designs, manufactures, fabricates, inspects, marks, maintains, reconditions, repairs or tests a package, container, or packaging component that is represented, marked, certified, or sold by that person as qualified for use in transporting hazardous materials in commerce[.]


Mook transported hazardous materials when he had not received the hazardous materials and safety training required by subpart H of 49 CFR Part 172 at any time within three years before that date.  He violated 49 CFR § l72.704(c)(2). 
Count IV


The MHTC argues that Mook violated 49 CFR § 382.305:

 (a) Every employer shall comply with the requirements of this. section.  Every driver shall submit to random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required in this section.
Mook transported the hazardous materials without requiring himself to submit to the prescribed random alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program.  He violated 49 CFR § 382.305(a). 

Count V

Section 226.009 states:

1.  Whenever the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, the United States Department of Transportation, or the state highways 
and transportation commission issues an out-of-service order against a motor carrier, as those terms are defined in Section 390.5 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and periodically may be amended, the commission may immediately, without hearing, order the suspension, revocation, cancellation, confiscation, or any of these, of every license, registration, certificate, permit, and other credential issued to the motor carrier by the commission’s authority under section 226.008 and every motor vehicle license plate issued under any provision of chapter 301 which authorizes the operation of motor vehicles in intrastate or interstate commerce by that motor carrier.  This section is applicable to out-of-service orders placing a motor carrier’s entire operation out of service, but does not apply to any out-of-service order placing an individual driver or individual vehicle out of service.

(1) The commission immediately shall serve notice of its order upon the affected motor carrier, and upon the director of revenue, in the manner authorized by section 622.410, or any other manner authorized by law for the service of notice of the. commission’s orders.  The notice or order shall state a specific effective date for the commission’s action or, in the commission’s discretion, that its action shall become effective immediately upon the service of the notice or order upon the motor carrier.  The order shall remain in force until ordered otherwise by the commission or by a court having proper jurisdiction.
(2) Whenever an order of the commission issued under subsection 1 of this section is in force, a motor carrier who is prohibited by the order from operating commercial motor vehicles shall not operate any commercial motor vehicles and shall not allow any employee, agent, lessor, or other person acting under the motor carrier’s authority or control to operate any commercial motor vehicles in intrastate or interstate commerce within this state.
Mook transported the hazardous material in violation of MHTC’s license suspension order.  He violated § 226.009.1(2).
Count VI


Section 390.270
 states:

Except as otherwise provided in section 390.030, no person shall engage in the business of transporting property, except household 
goods, by motor vehicle for hire or compensation in intrastate commerce on any public highway in this state, unless there is in force with respect to that person a property carrier registration issued by the division pursuant to the provisions of sections 390.260 to 390.350, which authorizes such transportation.
Mook violated this statute on two occasions when he engaged in the business of transporting property by motor vehicle for hire or compensation in intrastate commerce upon the public highways without a MoDOT property carrier registration authorizing that transportation.
Summary


Mook violated state law and federal regulations.  We cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on May 26, 2011.


________________________________



KAREN A. WINN


Commissioner

�The MHTC cites 49 CFR 172.101, the table of substances considered hazardous materials.  These are listed by chemical name.  The MHTC did not give us the chemical distinction for paint and adhesive that would allow us to use the table.  We accept that the MHTC asserted that these were both hazardous materials, and that there was no dispute of this.


�Exhibit 15 to the motion.


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.  Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2010, unless otherwise noted.  


	�Section 622.350.


	�Section 226.008.2(1) and §§ 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000.


�The complaint refers to subdivision (7), but the language quoted is currently found in subdivision (9).


�RSMo 2000.





PAGE  
2

